

TAICH COUNTRY REPORT DEVELOPMENT ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS FOR SWAZILAND

February 1982

This report describes the programs of 25 private, non-profit U.S. organizations which provide the people of Swaziland with development assistance and material aid. An index of the specific programs appears in chart form at the end of the report. Of the 25 U.S. organizations included in the report, 10 were able to provide TAICH with financial data indicating program expenditures in 1981 totaling \$351,728. These figures should be viewed more as indicators than as exact sums; differences in fiscal year, methods of financial reporting and methods of estimating dollar values of commodities, equipment and materiel shipped make correlation and absolute accuracy impossible.

This is one of a series of periodically revised reports which describe by country the development assistance activities of the U.S. non-profit sector. Additional and new information on the programs of the organizations appearing in this report is gathered regularly and is available from TAICH. Readers are requested to advise TAICH of any changes or new programs of U.S. private, non-profit organizations in Swaziland. Besides country reports, TAICH publishes directories, bibliographies, a quarterly newsletter and a series of category reports in which descriptions of assistance programs are compiled by functions of development assistance. A publications list is available from TAICH.

The information given on each organization is based on the data supplied to TAICH by the organization. Publication of this information does not guarantee accuracy of content or endorsement by the American Council or TAICH of any organization.

2nd edition 2/82

AMELICAN COUNCIL OF VOLUNTARY AGENCIES FOR FOREIGN SERVICE, INC. TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE INFORMATION CLEARING HOUSE (TAICH) 200 Park Avenue South, New York, New York 10003

THE AMERICAN COUNCIL OF VOLUNTARY AGENCIES FOR FOREIGN SERVICE, INC. was founded in 1943 for the purpose of providing a forum for cooperation, joint planning and the exchange of ideas and information in order to avoid duplication of effort and assure of relief, rehabilitation maximum effectiveness and the development programs of American voluntary agencies. Through the agencies have established mechanism of the Council, member relationships not only among themselves but with non-member agencies and governmental, intergovernmental and international The Technical Assistance Information Clearing organizations. House (TAICH) has been operated by the Council since 1955 with support from the U.S. Government, currently a grant from the Agency for International Development. All agencies that are Council members are noted by a +.

THE TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE INFORMATION CLEARING HOUSE serves as a center of information on the socio-economic development programs abroad of U.S. non-profit organizations, including voluntary agencies, church missions and foundations. It makes available to organizations, governments, researchers and others, source materials from its files for study and research. Through publications and the maintenance of an everyday inquiry service TAICH responds to the need for current information about development assistance with particular reference to the resources and concerns of the private, non-profit sector.

THE AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT (A.I.D.), maintains in its Bureau for Food for Peace and Voluntary Assistance a registry of U.S. private and voluntary organizations active in the fields of relief, rehabilitation and development overseas. Registered organizations are eligible to apply for A.I.D. resources, including and participation in the U.S. grants Government overseas freight reimbursement, Food for Peace and Government-owned excess property programs. For a current list of registered organizations write to the Agency for International Development, Office of Private and Voluntary Cooperation, Washington, D.C. 20523. Registered organizations are noted by an *.

-3-

Previous Page Liand

A State of the state of the state of the

CONTENTS

| | Africa Evangelical Fellowship, Inc | 7 |
|----|---|----|
| * | The African-American Institute | 7 |
| | Church of the Nazarene | 7 |
| *+ | Church World Service | 8 |
| * | The Cooperative League of the USA | 9 |
| | Darien Book Aid Plan, Inc | 9 |
| | Eastern Mennonite Board of Missions And Charities | 10 |
| | The Evangelical Alliance Mission | 10 |
| | Family Planning International Assistance/ | |
| * | Planned Parenthood Federation of America, Inc | 11 |
| | Freedom House, Inc. | 12 |
| *+ | Goodwill Industries of America, Inc | 12 |
| • | International Association of Lions Clubs | 13 |
| *+ | International Human Assistance Programs, Inc | 13 |
| | Lutheran World Ministries | 14 |
| *+ | MAP International | 14 |
| | Medical Mission Sisters | 14 |
| *+ | Mennonite Central Committee | 15 |
| • | National Baptist Convention, U.S.A., Inc. | 16 |
| * | National 4-H Council | 17 |
| *+ | Near East Foundation | 17 |
| • | Salesians of St. John Bosco (S.D.B.) | 18 |
| *+ | The Salvation Army | 18 |
| , | United Church Board for World Ministries | 19 |
| | United Methodist Committee On Relief | 19 |
| * | World Rehabilitation Fund, Inc. | 20 |
| - | Summary Chart | 20 |
| | | 21 |

* Registered with the U.S. Agency for International Development. + Member of the American Council of Voluntary Agencies for Foreign Service, Inc.

Provious Page Liank

AFRICA EVANGELICAL FELLOWSHIP, INC. 18 Snowden Place, Glen Ridge, New Jersey -- (201) 748-9281 Mailing Address: P.O. Box 109, Glen Ridge, New Jersey 07028

Address of contact: Alan Huntingford P.O. Box 204 Mbabane, Swaziland Tel. (0194) 42244

EDUCATION: Supports two secondary boarding schools, one for girls at Mbuluzi and the other coeducational at Monkayani.

PROGRAM INITIATION: 1974.

COOPERATING ORGANIZATION: Government of Swaziland.

(Program information received August 1981)

* THE AFRICAN-AMERICAN INSTITUTE 833 United Nations Plaza, New York, New York 10017 -- (212) 949-5666

EDUCATION: Administers the African Graduate Fellowship Program (AFGRAD) through which a limited number of fellowships are provided each year for Swaziland nationals to undertake graduate study programs in the United States for master's or doctoral degrees. Awards are only available in development related fields. Applicants are nominated by the Ministry of Education.

COOPERATING ORGANIZATIONS: The Council of Graduate Schools in the United States, Government of Swaziland, participating U.S. graduate schools, U.S. Agency for International Development.

(Program information received December 1981)

CHURCH OF THE NAZARENE Department of World Mission 6401 The Paseo, Kansas City, Missouri 64131 -- (816) 333-7000

Address of contact: Dr. Paul Wardlow, Mission Director P.O. Box 14 Manzini, Swaziland

EDUCATION: Operates 41 primary schools and three secondary schools at <u>Endingeni</u>, <u>Manzini</u> and <u>Seteki</u>. Operates a teacher training college at <u>Manzini</u>.

(continued)

Provious Page Lianx

MÉDICINE & PUBLIC HEALTH: Operates the Raleigh Fitkin Memorial Hospital at <u>Manzini</u>, a general hospital with facilities for maternity care, tuberculosis and leprosy cases. A training school for nurses is connected with the hospital. Also operates 17 dispensaries with a total bed capacity of 75. Provides nurses and doctors to a Government-owned leprosy hospital at Mubuluzi.

PERSONNEL: 43 U.S.

PROGRAM INITIATION: 1910.

(Program information received December 1981)

*+ CHURCH WORLD SERVICE 475 Riverside Drive, New York, New York 10115 -- (212) 870-2678

Address of contact: Eunice N. Sowazi, General Secretary Council of Swaziland Churches P.O. Box 1095 Manzini, Swaziland Tel. 53628

Church World Service supports the program of the Council of Swaziland Churches described below.

MEDICINE & PUBLIC HEALTH: The Rural Water Supply (RWS), a quasi governmental agency responsible for water development, has limited its activities to urbanized areas due to limited resources; as a consequence, groups in rural areas are not served. In response to a RWS request, the Council of Swaziland Churches has established a micro system water unit to evaluate requests for assistance with micro water systems; help to mobilize community participation; provide materials and construction assistance; and provide followup assistance for maintenance. Projects include spring protection, shallow hand-dug wells, rain pumps, boreholes and the laying of water pipes. The goals of the unit are to improve the level of health; provide water sources nearer homesteads to help alleviate the burdens of overworked women; promote the development of community cooperation; and encourage the raising of vegetables for improving diets in communities where sufficient water has not previously been available for gardens.

PERSONNEL: 3 local (project officer, engineer, driver).

PROGRAM INITIATION · 1981.

FINANCIAL DATA: Expenditures for CY 1981 \$8,000.

COOPERATING ORGANIZATION: Government of Swaziland, Rural Water Supply.

(Program information received January 1982)

* THE COOPERATIVE LEAGUE OF THE USA Cooperative League Fund, Inc. 1828 L Street, N.W., Suite 1100, Washington D.C. 20036 -- (202) 872-0550

Address of contact: Otis Williams c/o Central Cooperative Union Manzini, Swaziland

COOPERATIVES, CREAT UNIONS & LOANS: Assisting in the development of a viable organizational structure for the Central Cooperative Union, a functioning farm input supply system which provides fertilizer, farm chemicals and supplies to rural farmers who are members of cooperatives; also assists the cooperatives with the development of a system that will enable them to regularly market their crops and produce. The project was scheduled for completion on December 31, 1981.

PERSONNEL: 4 U.S., 6 local.

PROGRAM INITIATION: 1977.

COOPERATING ORGANIZATION: Government of Swaziland.

(Program information received October 1981)

DARIEN BOOK AID PLAN, INC. 1926 Post Road, Darien, Connecticut 06820 -- (203) 655-2777

EQUIPMENT & MATERIAL AID: Ships donated books upon request to libraries, schools, universities, teachers, reading clubs, Peace Corps Volunteers, etc. During the fiscal year ending 4/30/81, shipped 230 pounds of books to the Peace Corps.

COOPERATING ORGANIZATION: U.S. Peace Corps.

(Program information received August 1981)

EASTERN MENNONITE BOARD OF MISSIONS AND CHARITIES Oak Lane & Brandt Boulevard, Salunga, Pennsylvania 17538 (717) 898-2251

Address of contact: Peter and Leona Penner, Country Representatives Mennonite Central Committee P.O. Box 329 Mbabane, Swaziland

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT: Helps fund an integrated rural program which includes education, agriculture and water development, and health care and health education.

EDUCATION: Provides a science teacher to a Government funded secondary school.

MEDICINE & PUBLIC HEALTH: Provides a nurse who is engaged in a community health program, along with local Government supported health care workers; the program includes teaching nutrition, hygiene, baby care and especially the use of latrines at the village level.

PERSONNEL: 2 U.S. volunteer.

PROGRAM INITIATION: 1971.

FINANCIAL DATA: Expenditures for FY ending 11/30/80: \$22,000 Budget for FY ending 11/30/81: 37,000

COOPERATING ORGANIZATIONS: Africa Independent Church community, Gilgal; Government of Swaziland, Ministries of Education and Health, provides overall supervision; Mennonite Central Committee administers the program.

(Program information received August 1981)

THE EVANGELICAL ALLIANCE MISSION 400 South Main Place, Carol Stream, Illinois -- (312) 653-5300 Mailing Address: P.O. Box 969, Wheaton, Illinois 60187

Address of contact: David Greene, Director TEAM P.O. Box 190 Florida 1710, TVL South Africa

EDUCATION: Assigns personnel upon request from the church/school boards to the Franson Christian High School at <u>Mhlotsheni</u>, with 421 primary students and 332 secondary students, and to the Florence Christian Academy at <u>Hluti</u>, with 113 primary students and 140 secondary students. Both schools are now operated by the national churches.

PERSONNEL: 5 teachers, U.S. and Canada.

PROGRAM INITIATION: 1924.

(Program information received November 1981)

FAMILY PLANNING INTERNATONAL ASSISTANCE
* Planned Parenthood Federation of America, Inc., International
Division
(Planned Parenthood--World Population)
810 Seventh Avenue, New York, New York 10019 -- (212) 541-7800

Address of contact: Regional Director Family Planning International Assistance P.O. Box 53538 Nairobi, Kenya

POPULATION & FAMILY SERVICES: Gave a grant of \$29,588 (10/1/80-9/30/81) to the Family Life Association of Swaziland which provides counseling services in family life; develops written materials; contacts schools, health facilities, women's groups and church groups regarding the project and its services; delivers lectures; and plans a variety of courses and workshops; and which established a Family Life Education Center. From 7/1/80-6/30/81, shipped contraceptives, medical kits and equipment, and informational and educational materials valued at \$6,629 to two institutions.

PROGRAM INITIATION: 1972.

FINANCIAL DATA: Assistance for the period 7/1/80-6/30-81: <u>\$36,217</u> TOTAL Project obligations - 29,588 Value of commodity shipments - 6,629

(Program information received November 1981)

FREEDOM HOUSE, INC. 26 West 40th Street, New York, New York 10018 -- (212) 730-7744

EQUIPMENT & MATERIAL AID: Under Freedom House/Books USA, shipped 60 pounds of books for distribution.

FINANCIAL DATA: Value of books shipped in FY ending 11/30/80: \$240. (Program information received July 1981)

*+ GOODWILL INDUSTRIES OF AMERICA, INC. 9200 Wisconsin Avenue, Washington, D.C. 20014 -- (301) 530-6500

Address of contact: Mr. Ephraim Magaula, Chairman Swaziland National Society for the Handicapped P.O. Box 983 Mbabane, Swaziland Tel. 43719

The purpose of the program is to provide technical assistance to the Swaziland National Society for the Handicapped, Goodwill's affiliate, in strengthening its role as coordinator of services for disabled people in the country, and creating specific vocational training and employment projects including the following:

SOCIAL WELFARE: The Ekwetsembeni day school for 40 learning disabled and mentally retarded children in <u>Mbabane</u>; a site and building plan have been prepared for a permanent center, and some funding pledged by local service clubs. Also in <u>Mbabane</u>, at the government hospital, runs a school for inpatienc children who are long-term patients and outpatient disabled children who are no longer enrolled in public school. Collaborative job creation projects are planned with St. Phillip's Mission Knitting School and St. Joseph's Ekululameni Mission.

PROGRAM INITIATION: 1980.

COOPERATING ORGANIZATIONS: Catholic missions; Government of Swaziland, various ministries; local service clubs.

(Program information received August 1981)

INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF LIONS CLUBS (Lions Clubs International) 300 22nd Street, Oak Brook, Illinois 60570 -- (312) 986-1700

EQUIPMENT & MATERIAL AID: The Lions Clubs International Foundation makes occasional grants for projects relating to major disaster relief, vocational assistance and humanitarian services.

PROGRAM INITIATION: 1979.

(Program information received August 1981)

*+INTERNATIONAL HUMAN ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS, INC. 360 Park Avenue South, New York, New York 10010 -- (212) 684-6804

Address of contact: Richard A. Yoder c/o Agency for International Development American Embassy Mbabane, Swaziland

MEDICINE & PUBLIC HEALTH: Conducted a feasibility study and is now assisting the Ministry of Health to improve its functional capabilities which will provide a better health care delivery system. Frovides a team of long-term advisors to work with Ministry officials. The program includes the following interrelated activities: project staffing to provide appropriate expertise, training activities to strengthen staff capabilities, and provision of equipment and supplies.

FUTURE PLANS: To help incorporate project evaluation as a management tool in the annual planning process of the Ministry of Health.

PERSONNEL: 2 U.S. (health planner, manpower development officer).

PROGRAM INITIATION: 1982.

FINANCIAL DATA: Expenditures for FY ending 6/30/81: \$ 35,000 Budget for FY ending 6/30/82: 150,000

COOPERATING ORGANIZATIONS: Government of Swaziland, Ministry of Health; U.S. Agency for International Development.

(Program information received December 1981)

LUTHERAN WORLD MINISTRIES USA National Committee/Lutheran World Federation 360 Park Avenue South, New York, New York 10010 -- (212) 532-6350

SOCIAL WELFARE: Gives financial support to Lutheran World Federation (LWF), which, at the Government's request, is providing operational support for the United Nations High Commissioner for Refugees' program to assist 4,000 rural refugees from South Africa. From its headquarters in <u>Mbabane</u> and field office at <u>Big</u> <u>Bend</u>, provides guidance and supervision in community development, health, agriculture and education, with agricultural programs given priority.

PROGRAM INITIATION: 1980.

COOPERATING ORGANIZATIONS: Government of Swaziland, United Nations High Commissioner for Refugees.

(Program information received August 1981)

*+ MAP INTERNATIONAL 327 Gundersen Drive, Carol Stream, Illinois -- (312) 653-6010 Mailing Address: P.O. Box 50, Wheaton, Illinois 60187

MEDICINE & PUBLIC HEALTH: Makes shipments of donated medicines and hospital supplies in response to the requests of missionary doctors.

FINANCIAL DATA: During CY 1980 sent 400 pounds of medicines and supplies with a value of \$6,896.

(Program information received July 1981)

MEDICAL MISSI (S.C.M.M.) (Society of Calculate Medical Missionaries, Inc.) 8400 Pine Road, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19111 -- (215) 742-6100

Address of contact: Sister Laetitia Koten, Coordinator Maphungwane Box 36 Siteki, Swaziland

The U.S. sector provides funds and personnel in support of the Africa sector which conducts the following program:

(continued)

-14-

MEDICINE & PUBLIC HEALTH: Staffs the Good Shepherd Hospital in Siteki which normally serves about 90 patients at a time. Nurseaide training has a community health aspect, granting students a Red Cross certificate at the end of their first year of training. In 1972 assumed responsibility for the health care of 400 miners and their families according to a contract with the Anglo-American Corporation. Operates weekly clinics in Ngcina in the <u>Busgveld</u> and in <u>Siboteleni</u>. Conducts vaccination campaigns, and health education talks in schools and markets, for smallpox and tuberculosis control. Conducts only regional dental service. A mobile dental health unit visits schools and other health facilities; a permanent dental office is set up at <u>Siteki</u> hospital. In <u>Maphungwane</u> two sisters provide primary health care in villages.

FUTURE PLANS: To continue updating of nursing service and prenatal and follow-up clinics to combat tuberculosis, typhoid, bilharzia and kwashiorkor, which are still very common. To expand health education, especially in area of nutrition. To carry out alterations and renovations of existing buildings and develop a dental assistant training program. To continue efforts to transfer programs to local control.

PERSONNEL: 1 U.S., dentist; 7 international (doctor, household manager, 2 nurses, 2 nurse-midwives, accountant).

PROGRAM INITIATION: 1970.

COOPERATING ORGANIZATIONS: Misereor, UNICEF.

(Program information received August 1981)

*+ MENNONITE CENTRAL COMMITTEE
21 South 12th Street, Akron, Pennsylvania -- (717) 859-1151
Mailing Address: P.O. Box M, Akron, Pennsylvania 17501

Address of contact: Peter and Leona Penner, Country Representatives Box 329 Mbabane, Swaziland

Provides personnel who are working on the programs described below.

EDUCATION: Twelve educators serve in secondary, teacher training and university institutions. Their work includes in-service training for primary teachers, development of a school for mentally handicapped children and teaching in a school financed by the U.N. High Commissioner for Refugees to provide places for refugee students. Supports the Lutsango Vocational Centre designed to teach unschooled young women occupational skills such as dressmaking and bookkeeping.

FOOD PRODUCTION & AGRICULTURE: Five agricultural workers serve as teachers, coordinator and technical assistant to the Schools Agriculture Panel, and as rural water technicians for the Council of Swaziland Churches and the government rural water service.

MEDICINE & PUBLIC HEALTH: One nurse serves in a public health clinic.

PERSONNEL: 15 U.S., including 8 education, 3 agriculture, 1 health, 1 administration; 8 Canada (4 education, 2 agriculture, 2 administration).

PROGRAM INITIATION: 1971.

FINANCIAL DATA: Expenditures for FY ending 11/30/80: \$155,553 Budget for FY ending 11/30/81: 195,000

COOPERATING ORGANIZATIONS: Council of Swaziland Churches, Eastern Mennonite Board of Mission And Charities, Swaziland Conference of Churches.

(Program information received August 1981)

NATIONAL BAPTIST CONVENTION, U.S.A., INC. Foreign Mission Board 701 South 19th Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19146 (215) 535-7868/6414

Address of contact: National Baptist Convention Woodlands Township Mbabane, Swaziland

EDUCATION: Operates a preschool in Mbabane.

PERSONNEL: Only local.

PROGRAM INITIATION: 1968.

(Program information received November 1981)

* NATIONAL 4-H COUNCIL 7100 Connecticut Avenue, N.W., Chevy Chase, Maryland 20815 (301) 656-9000

Address of contact: 4-S Program Ministry of Agriculture Box 162 Mbabane, Swaziland

EDUCATION: ponsors two-way exchange which provides opportunities for young people and professionals to exchange ideas with 4-H-type organizations in other countries, develop an understanding of their own and other cultures, and make a contribution to international development and understanding. Programs include International Four-H Youth Exchange (IFYE), a three to six month opportunity to live with host families, observe and participate in 4-H and similar activities; International Youth Development Project, 15-18 month placement of U.S. volunteers in counterpart positions in developing countries where they assist in building and expanding programs similar to 4-H, preparing educational materials, recruiting and training volunteer leaders and serving as program advisors; and Professional Rural Youth Leader Exchange, an opportunity for participants to study 4-H-type programs in the U.S. for three months, while living with host families or in training centers.

PERSONNEL: Local staff only.

PROGRAM INITIATION: 1975.

COOPERATING ORGANIZATIONS: Government of Swaziland, Ministry of Agriculture; U.S. Government, Department of Agriculture, Cooperative Extension Service and Department of State, Bureau of Educational and Cultural Affairs; U.S. State 4-H Foundations and nonprofit U.S. host organizations.

(Program information received October 1981)

*+ NEAR EAST FOUNDATION 29 Broadway, Suite 1125, New York, New York 10006 - (212) 269-0600

Address of contact: Dr. Wayne Durdle Tibiyo Taka Ngwane P.O. Box 181 Kwalusani, Sweziland

FOOD PRODUCTION & AGRICULTURE: Provides a specialist for a project to develop a mohair producing herd of angora goats as a source of breeding stock to farmers who wish to replace their irdigenous herd with this high income producing animal.

PERSONNEL: 1 U.S., 6 local.

PROGRAM INITIATION: 1979.

FINANCIAL DATA: Expenditures for FY ending 6/30/81: \$15,000 Budget for FY ending 6/30/82: 13,000

COOPERATING ORGANIZATION: Tibiyo Taka Ngwane provides capital devalopment costs.

(Program information received July 1981)

SALESIANS OF ST. JOHN BOSCO (S.D.B.) Province of St. Philip the Apostle 148 Main Street, New Rochelle, New York 10802 -- (914) 633-8344

Address of contact: Rev. Patrick Ahern, S.D.B. Salesian High School P.O. Box 95 Manzini, Swaziland

U.S. Salesians provides financial assistance to the International Salesian Society which finances and administers the project described below.

EDUCATION: Provides financial support for the Salesian High School in Manzini.

PERSONNEL: 17 international administrators, 9 local teachers.

PROGRAM INITIATION: 1953.

COOPERATING ORGANIZATION: Government of Swaziland, Ministry of Education.

(Program information received August 1981)

+ THE SALVATION ARMY National Headquarters: 799 Bloomfield Avenue, Verona, New Jersey 07044 (201) 239-0606

* THE SALVATION ARMY WORLD SERVICE OFFICE 1025 Vermont Avenue, N.W., Suite 350, Washington, D.C. 20005 (202) 833-5646

Address of contact: Col. W. Gordon Swansbury, Chief Secretary 119-121 Rissik Street, Wanderer's View Johannesburg, South Africa

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT: In cooperation with youth groups and women's groups, working to increase food production and gardening; improve sanitation; and promote nutrition education and nonformal education.

PROGRAM INITIATION: 1923.

(Program information received February 1982)

UNITED CHURCH BOARD FOR WORLD MINISTRIES United Church of Christ, Divisions of World Mission and World Service 475 Riverside Drive, New York, New York 10115 -- (212) 870-2637

Address of contact: Rev. Lawrence Gilley P.O. Box 1444 Mbabane, Swaziland

EDUCATION: Providing the services of two people who are working in an education program in Mbabane.

PERSONNEL: 2 U.S.

PROGRAM INITIATION: 1977.

FINANCIAL DATA: Expenditures for CY 1981: \$21,000 Budget for CY 1982: 24,000

(Program information received January 1982)

UNITED METHODIST COMMITTEE ON RELIEF 475 Riverside Drive, New York, New York 10115 -- (212) 678-6281

SOCIAL WELFARE: Provides funds to the Christian Council of Swaziland for assistance to refugees. The refugee population in Swaziland is small and is estimated to be about 500 at present. Most of the refugees are young men and women of school age. They come mainly from South Africa but recently the number from Mozambique has been increasing. The Council is assisting the

placement of refugees in educational institutions and helping to pay their school fees. The main project has been the funding of the refugee school at <u>Thokiza</u>, run by the Mennonite Central Committee.

PROGRAM INITIATION: 1981.

FINANCIAL DATA: Expenditures for CY 1981: \$5,000.

COOPERATING ORGANIZATION: The Christian Council of Swaziland.

(Program information received July 1981)

* WORLD REHABILITATION FUND, INC. 400 East 34th Street, New York, New York 10016 -- (212) 340-6062

MEDICINE & PUBLIC HEALTH: Provided a fellowship for a trainee from the <u>Mbabane</u> Government Hospital to attend a postgraduate and instructor's course from 9/14/81-12/11/81, at the WRF Regional Training Center, Associacao Assistencia a Crianca Defeituosa, in Sao Paulo, Brazil. The Director of Field Service provided consultation services to the orthopedic workshop of <u>Mbabane</u> Government Hospital in 6/80 and 6/81.

PROGRAM INITIATION: 1970.

FINANCIAL DATA: Expenditures for FY ending 6/30/81: \$375 (consultation visit 6/81)

Budget for FY ending 6/30/82: \$2,000 (fellowship)

COOPERATING ORGANIZATIONS: Associacao de Assistencia a Crianca Defeituosa, Sao Paulo, Brazil provided the instructors and facilities for the training program; World Health Organization provided travel expenses for the trainee.

(Program information received October 1981)

This chart provides a quick reference summary of the development assistance activities of the organizations included in this report. "PP" indicates a proposed program, a dot indicates a current program.

| AGENCIES | Communic | Community Domining | Commune | Cooperation Housing | Economic & Condin | Editaria | Eduinan . | FOOD POOL | Induminan Domining | And and a second | Nuerritos | Reputerion . | Province Barrier | | and and and | Yours | / |
|---|----------|-----------------------|------------|---------------------|-------------------|----------|-----------|-----------|-----------------------|------------------|-----------|--------------|------------------|----------|-------------|-------|---|
| Africa Evangelical Fellowship | | | 1 | | | • | | | | | | | | | | | |
| The African-American Institute | | | ļ | | | • | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Church of the Nazarene | | | | | | • | | | | • | | | Ĺ | | | | |
| Church World Service | | | | | | | | 0 | | • | | | | | | | |
| The Cooperative League of the U.S.A. | | | | • | | | | • | | _ | | | ļ | | | | |
| Darien Book Aid Plan Eastern Mennonite Board of Missicns And Charities | | • | | | | • | • | • | | • | • | | | | | | |
| The Evangelical Alliance Mission | | | | | | • | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Family Planning International Assistance | | | | | | | | | | | | • | | | | | |
| Freedom House | | | | | | | \bullet | | | | | | | | | | |
| Goodwill Industries of America International Association of Lions Clubs | | | | | | • | • | | • | | | | | • | | | |
| International Human Assistance Programs | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Lutheran World Ministries | | 0 | | | | • | | • | | | | | | • | | | |
| MAP International | | | | | | | | | ļ | • | L | | | | ļ | | |
| Medical Mission Sisters | | | | | <u> </u> | | | | | • | | | | <u> </u> | | | |

¢1

4

-21-

This chart provides a quick reference summary of the development assistance activities of the organizations included in this report. "PP" indicates a proposed program, a dot indicates a current program.

| Communication | Communications | Contraction | Cooperation Housing | Economic & Carli Economic & Louns | Edward Ramming | Eduipane - | Tool Pool | Industrial | Participan a | Aurorition | The second se | Police Contraction | Service State | . | Kan | \prod |
|---------------|----------------|-------------|---------------------|--------------------------------------|---------------------------------------|------------|-----------|------------|--------------|------------|---|--------------------|---------------|----------|-----------|---------|
| | | | | | ۲ | | • | | • | | | | • | • | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| ļ | | | | | ۲ | | • | | | | | | | ļ | | |
| | | L | | | | | • | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | ۲ | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | • | | | | | \bullet | | | | 6 | \bullet | |
| | | | | | • | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | • | | | | | | | | | | ullet | ļ |
| | | | | | | | | | ullet | | | | 0 | | | Į |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | i | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

- Sevious Page Deman

-23-